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November 7, 2021 

 

Damon Roberts                                                                                                                             

Water Quality Program Manager                                                                                                    

WA Ecology Central Washington Division                                                                                

1250 West Alder Street                                                                                                                        

Union Gap, WA 98903-0009 

damon.roberts@ecy.wa.gov 

Dear Mr. Roberts,  

     Here is the short story: 

     On July 29, 2021, the Friends of Toppenish Creek (FOTC) submitted a complaint about 

discharge to groundwater at 2371 Stover Road, Grandview, WA, 98930. On August 4, 2021, five 

days later, WSDA closed the file. WSDA closed the file while ignoring concerns about 

composting of manure in pens and corrals where thousands of cows are kept on about 200 acres. 

WSDA said that there were discrepancies in the data Ecology collated regarding the Klompe 

Frieslandia dairy manure lagoons. WSDA said that, because the dairy’s nutrient management 

plan was written after 2008, liners for these aging lagoons achieve permeability < 10-7cm/sec.  

     Conclusion: WSDA abuses their Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Ecology to 

shield dairies from responsibility when the dairies discharge pollutants into the waters of the 

State of Washington. 

Sincerely, 

Jean Mendoza                                                                                                                                

Executive Director, Friends of Toppenish Creek 

3142 Signal Peak Road                                                                                                              

White Swan, WA 98952 
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Here is the long story: 

     On July 29, 2021, the Friends of Toppenish Creek (FOTC) submitted a complaint about 

discharge to groundwater at 2371 Stover Road, Grandview, WA, 98930.1 Our complaint was 

mismanaged and WSDA did not determine whether there was and is discharge of pollutants to 

Lower Yakima Valley (LYV) groundwater.  

     As we all know discharge to groundwater is not as obvious as discharge to surface water. 

However, based on our knowledge of best management practices (BMPs) for dairies and our 

knowledge of Lower Yakima Valley (LYV) groundwater pollution, FOTC considered the 

likelihood of a discharge at this dairy to be very high. We were told that Ecology only 

investigates discharges that are reported to your agency, so we submitted a complaint.  

     In summary: 

1. We all know that pollutants leach from pens and corrals where large numbers of animals 

are confined in small spaces. We know this based on studies from California, the Lower 

Yakima Valley Groundwater Management Area, and local sampling conducted by 

WSDA that FOTC submitted along with our complaint. Because cows compact the soil in 

pens and corrals with hoof action, the leaching is not as large as it would be on unpacked 

soil.  

But our complaint did not rest on the research. We complained because the 

Klompe/Frieslandia dairy at 2371 Stover Road, does not remove manure from the pens as 

required by best management practices. Instead, Klompe/Frieslandia keeps manure in the 

pens and composts it there. Milk cows excrete about 120 lbs. of feces and urine and 

nearly 1 lb. of nitrogen a day. There are thousands of cows on approximately 215 acres at 

2371 Stover Road. The nitrogen must go somewhere - as surface water runoff, leaching 

to the ground, or into the ambient air. The nitrogen does not simply disappear. 

 

1. Dear Central WA ERTS: I wish to report a high potential for leaching of nitrate into the groundwater from 

Klompe and Frieslandia Dairy at 2371 Stover Road, Grandview, WA 98930. This dairy no longer removes 

manure from pens and corrals, but now composts the manure where it is deposited. The result is increased 

leaching, runoff, and harmful emissions. Best management practices stipulate frequent removal of manure 

from pens and corrals, not composting in place. It is hard to believe that any ethical conservation district 

would approve composting where the animals eat, sleep, and live as part of a dairy nutrient management 

plan. 

As we all know, local studies document leaching from pens and corrals, as well as leaching from compost 

yards. Tech Note 23 assessment of the manure lagoons at this site places one lagoon in Category 3C, and 

another in Category 4 – NRCS recommends discontinued use of the WSP for the purposes of waste storage 

until major repairs or possible replacement of the existing WSP meeting the current NRCS Conservation 

Practice Standard 313, Waste Storage Facility and the site would benefit from additional practices to reduce 

discharge potential in the situation of a structure failure with structure relocation being considered. Klompe 

and Frieslandia does not have an NPDES permit. Given the high likelihood of discharge to groundwater, 

please consider this a report of discharge and a request for corrective action. 
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2. Clay lined manure lagoons at this dairy were classified as high/high risk and 

high/medium risk for leaching according to Tech Note 23 lagoon inspection data that 

FOTC received from Ecology through a public records request.2, 3 Due to these risks the 

Natural Resource Conservation Service (NRCS) recommends replacing the lagoons or 

discontinuing use pending major upgrades.4 

     When FOTC did not receive information on how Ecology/WSDA had addressed our ERTS 

complaint, we contacted the Central WA Ecology offices. Staff told us to submit a public records 

request. We find this unusual, but we did submit the request and now respond. Requiring a PRR 

in this situation sends a chilling message to people who simply want clean water.  

     In her response notes WSDA inspector Kristina Nina Gibson cites the Klompe/Freislandia 

dairy nutrient management plan as evidence that the dairy complies with NRCS guidelines. This 

is invalid reasoning and is misleading. Washington dairies are required to have nutrient 

management plans on their premises, but there is nothing in the law that requires the dairies to 

follow their plans. In WSDA’s 2017 report to the legislature, Implementation of Nutrient 

Management Training Program for Farmers and Manure Management Program Review, the 

agency stated on page 6, “There is no penalty for failure to follow or update an NMP.” 5 Despite 

Governor Inslee’s request for corrective legislation, this reality has not changed. 

     For decades FOTC and others have complained about inadequate responses to citizen 

complaints about discharges from LYV dairies. We believe that complaints were addressed more 

effectively when Ecology was in charge, prior to 2003. We believe that the MOU between 

Ecology and WSDA creates so many hurdles that legitimate reports of discharge are ignored and 

frequently undocumented. ERTS 708314 is an example. 

     Please give us some assistance, guidance, and support on how to navigate a biased and unfair 

system that protects polluters at the expense of the environment and the public. Yesterday we 

filed more public records requests with a goal of clarifying the extent of groundwater pollution 

from Klompe/Frieslandia. We would like to continue communications with Ecology after we 

receive and study that data.  

 

2. FOTC believes these assessments are incomplete/underscored because there was no documentation of liner 

thickness at the site. The Tech Note 23 Structural Assessment Form requires scores for 1. Compliance with 

NRCS practice standard criteria, and 4. Structural modifications. Both of these categories were left blank in 

the Klompe/Frieslandia lagoon assessments according to Ecology’s spreadsheet. This resulted in default 

scores of zero for these categories. 

3. FOTC believes the depth to groundwater data in Ecology’s Tech Note 23 spreadsheet is incorrect. Please 

see attachment B - Map of depth to groundwater from the Lower Yakima Valley Groundwater 

Management Area, Available at https://www.yakimacounty.us/DocumentCenter/View/22177/GWMA-

VolumeI-July2019 

4. NRCS Tech Note 23 – attached to the FOTC ERTS complaint. 

5. Implementation of Nutrient Management Training Program for Farmers and Manure Management Program 

Review. Available at https://app.leg.wa.gov/ReportsToTheLegislature/Home/GetPDF?fileName=634-

DNMP2017LegReport_b2479af1-2fc9-4218-8200-1a0118e3063b.pdf 

https://www.yakimacounty.us/DocumentCenter/View/22177/GWMA-VolumeI-July2019
https://www.yakimacounty.us/DocumentCenter/View/22177/GWMA-VolumeI-July2019
https://app.leg.wa.gov/ReportsToTheLegislature/Home/GetPDF?fileName=634-DNMP2017LegReport_b2479af1-2fc9-4218-8200-1a0118e3063b.pdf
https://app.leg.wa.gov/ReportsToTheLegislature/Home/GetPDF?fileName=634-DNMP2017LegReport_b2479af1-2fc9-4218-8200-1a0118e3063b.pdf
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Attachment A: Aerial photos of Klompe/Frieslandia from Google Maps – November 5, 2021 
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Attachment B: Depth to Groundwater from the Lower Yakima Valley Groundwater Management 

Area Program, Vol. I, page 43. Available at 

https://www.yakimacounty.us/DocumentCenter/View/22177/GWMA-VolumeI-July2019 
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Attachment C: Aquifer Susceptibility Map for WA State from Tech Note 23, page 34. Available 

at https://ecology.wa.gov/DOE/files/a0/a0a6c01a-af2c-428b-83ba-a30f10d8e643.pdf 
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Attachment D  
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